OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
City oF HAMILTON

April 3, 2023

VIA: Mail and Email

ATTN: Hon. Sylvia Jones
Minister of Health
Ministry of Health

5th Floor

777 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 2J3
Sylvia.Jones@pc.ola.org

RE: 2023 PHS Annual Service Plan & Budget Submission; Support for
Sufficient, Stable and Sustained Funding for Local Public Health

Agencies

Dear Hon. Sylvia Jones,

The Board of Health (BOH) for the City of Hamilton Public Health Services is committed
to achieving our mandate of keeping Hamiltonians healthy, preventing disease, and
reducing health inequities as articulated in the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS).
However, we have concerns about our ability to meet the growing needs of our
community with current provincial funding. At its meeting on March 20, 2023, the BOH
endorsed the following recommendations included in Board of Health Report
BOH23011:

e That the Board of Health reiterate their call to the Ministry of Health to fully fund
the provincial portion, at least 70%, of the total costs of the mandatory public
health programs and services provided under the Ontario Public Health
Standards;
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e That the Board of Health reiterate their call to the Ministry of Health to continue
the current mitigation funding until such time as the cost-shared arrangement is
restored to 75%/25% for all cost-shared programs and that the Province once
again assumes 100% funding for those programs identified as such in the public
health budget for 2018-2019; and,

e That the Board of Health call on the Ministry of Health to include expectations for
on-going COVID-19 response in the Ontario Public Health Standards and provide
permanent funding to sustain these requirements.

As with other health units across the province, the deployment of significant Hamilton
Public Health Services (HPHS) staff to the COVID-19 emergency response for over 2.5
years meant less ability to focus on other important public health issues. This impacted
service delivery in many program areas and resulted in service backlogs and deficits of
care in our community. Now that we have emerged from the crisis phase of the COVID-
19 response, HPHS has been working to resume OPHS-mandated programs and
services and address the deficits of care, while also continuing to respond to COVID-19.
In addition, many long-standing health issues have been worsened by the COVID-19
pandemic and require focus and attention in planning and resourcing in order to achieve
significant gains. HPHS has identified priority action areas to address Hamilton’s priority
population health needs of child and youth healthy growth and development, climate
change, health equity, and mental health and substance use.

In October 2021, Hamilton's previous BOH wrote to the previous Health Minister
endorsing letters from Peterborough Public Health and the Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine
Ridge District Health Unit identifying the need for additional ongoing support as
Ontario’s public health units continued to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Specifically, support was requested to relieve the following financial pressures:

Increased wage, benefit and operational costs due to inflation;

New and expanded programs that were added to the OPHS;

Resources required to address deficits of care;

Increased demand for public health services to support community pandemic
recovery; and,

¢ Continued support for COVID-19 response.

In 2022, the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) submitted a report to
the provincial government to further demonstrate the need for additional investments in
public health required to clear the service backlog, resume routine programs and
services, and maintain an effective pandemic response. Recently, as part of their 2023
pre-budget submission, alPHa re-iterated their call to the Province to immediately revert
to the 75%/25% provincial-municipal public health cost-sharing formula, along with a
pledge to continue 100% funding for programs that have been traditionally underwritten
by the Province. Furthermore, in his 2022 Annual Report entitled “Being Ready,
Ensuring Public Health Preparedness for Infectious Outbreaks and Pandemics” the
Chief Medical Officer of Health calls for sustained investments in strengthening the




public health sector to ensure preparedness. Hamilton’s BOH endorses these calls for
sufficient and sustained funding for public health and agrees that it is more efficient and
effective to invest in preparedness than to pay the much higher and heavier costs of
being unprepared.

Through HPHS’ 2023 ASPB submission it has been assessed that even with the
provincial mitigation funding, the anticipated provincial subsidy will only be
approximately 70% of the total costs of mandatory programs in 2023, a shortfall of
$2.3M. With the mitigation funding expected to end in 2023, HPHS will have substantial
cost pressures in 2024 and beyond. For HPHS to fully address Hamilton’s priority
population health needs, restoration of the mixed 75%/25% Provincial/Municipal and
100% Provincial funding model is required.

Additionally, COVID-19 requires dedicated resources to sustain the on-going response,
including case and contact management, outbreak management, infection prevention
and control, immunization, surveillance, communication, pandemic preparedness and
enforcement activities. The Hamilton BOH agrees with alPHa that language in the public
health mandate (i.e., OPHS) and permanent funding is required to sustain these efforts.

Realizing these substantial cost pressures in 2023 and beyond, the Hamilton BOH
urges the provincial government to:

e Fully fund the provincial portion, at least 70%, of the total costs of the mandatory
public health programs and services provided under the OPHS;

e Continue the current mitigation funding until such time as the cost-shared
arrangement is restored to the mixed 100% and 75%/25% model as it was in the
public health budget for 2018-2019; and,

¢ Include expectations for on-going COVID-19 response in the OPHS and provide
permanent funding to sustain these requirements.

The work of public health, done in collaboration with local partners and within the
broader public health system, results in a healthier population that contributes to a
stronger economy while preserving costly and scarce health care resources. For the
health of our population, it is critical that public health be adequately resourced. A clear
commitment by the Province to developing a process that ensures timely, predictable
and sufficient funding is needed. While mitigation funding from the Province has been
helpful, clearer and more timely assurances of funding for both routine and
extraordinary public health activities will be required to inform budgets over multiple

years.




Our Medical Officer of Health, Dr. Elizabeth Richardson, would be happy to meet with
your staff to discuss this further as well.

Sincerely,

AuHk

Andrea Horwath
Mayor
City of Hamilton

CC:

Hon. Neil Lumsden, MPP, Hamilton East — Stoney Creek
Monique Taylor, MPP, Hamilton Mountain

Sarah Jama, MPP, Hamilton Centre

Sandy Shaw, MPP, Hamilton West-Ancaster-Dundas
Donna Skelly, MPP, Flamborough-Glanbrook

Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health

Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
Ontario Boards of Health



